Гуляндина Оксана Николаевна преподаватель английского языка ГПОУ «Юргинский технологический колледж» Т. 8-923-481-75-56 e-mail: ogulyandina@mail.ru

### ДЕПАРТАМЕНТ ОБРАЗОВАНИЯ И НАУКИ КЕМЕРОВСКОЙ ОБЛАСТИ

## ГПОУ «ЮРГИНСКИЙ ТЕХНОЛОГИЧЕСКИЙ КОЛЛЕДЖ»

Цикловая методическая комиссия ГУМАНИТАРНЫХ ДИСЦИПЛИН

УТВЕР.	ЖДА	Ю
Зам. директор	а по `	УР
Д.Б.	Рого	ва
	20	Γ.

## ФОНД ТЕСТОВЫХ ЗАДАНИЙ

Дисциплина Специальность Английский язык 54.02.01 Дизайн (по отраслям)

Фонд тестовых заданий предназначен для контроля знаний обучающихся по дисциплине Английский язык и разработан в соответствии с «Рекомендациями по реализации образовательной программы среднего (полного) общего образования в образовательных учреждениях начального профессионального среднего профессионального образования в соответствии с федеральным базисным учебным планом и примерными учебными планами для образовательных учреждений Российской Федерации, реализующих программы общего образования» (письмо Департамента государственной политики инормативно-правового регулирования в сфере образования Минобрнауки России от 29.05.2007 № 03-1180), на основе примерной программы учебной дисциплины Английский язык, утвержденной 16.04. 2008 г. ФГУ «ФИРО» Минобрнауки России и с рабочей программой по учебной дисциплине Английский язык, утверждённой заместителем директора по учебной работе 01. 09. 2016 г.

ОДОБРЕНО	
ЦМК Гуманитарных дисциплин	
Протокол № от20г.	
Председатель ЦК	О.Н. Гуляндина
СОСТАВИТЕЛЬ Преподаватель	
английского языка ГПОУ ЮТК	О.Н. Гуляндина
Заведующий лабораторией стандартизации	Е.Н. Соловьева
Зарегистрировано в методическом кабинете	20r.
Заведующий методическим кабинетом	И.Н. Тащиян

## СОДЕРЖАНИЕ

1.	Контролируемые знания и умения	4
2.	Структура тестовых заданий	5
3.	Тестовые задания	6
	Раздел 1. Кто есть кто?	6
	Раздел 2. Город	8
	Раздел 3. История твоего города	11
	Раздел 4. По дороге воспоминаний	13
	Раздел 5. Правдивая история	15
	Раздел 6. Этот удивительный мир!	17
	Раздел 7. Свободное время	20
	Раздел 8. Что ждать нам от будущего?	23
	Раздел 9. Работа. Карьера. Образование	25
4.	Варианты ответов на тестовые задания	28
5.	Критерии оценки	32
	Перечень рекомендуемых учебных изданий, дополнительной	
	литературы	33

## 1. КОНТРОЛИРУЕМЫЕ ЗНАНИЯ И УМЕНИЯ:

(выписка из рабочей программы)

№	Контролируемые знания и умения
	Знания:
31	лексический минимум (1200-1400 лексических единиц)
32	грамматический минимум, необходимый для чтения и перевода (со словарем) иностранных текстов профессиональной направленности
	Умения:
У1	переводить (со словарем) иностранные тексты профессиональной направленности
У2	самостоятельно совершенствовать устную и письменную речь, пополнять словарный запас
У3	общаться (устно и письменно) на иностранном языке на профессиональные и повседневные темы

## 2. СТРУКТУРА ТЕСТОВЫХ ЗАДАНИЙ

$\mathcal{N}\!$	Темы (разделы)	Максимальное	Максимальное	Максимальное
	программы	количество	количество	количество
		часов по	часов на	тестовых
		программе	теорию	заданий
Ι	Страноведение	57	40	57
1.	Кто есть кто?	20	14	20
2.	Город	17	12	17
3.	История твоего города	20	14	20
II	Социально-бытовая	65		
11	сфера	05	50	65
4.	По дороге	15	12	15
4.	воспоминаний	15	12	13
5.	Правдивая история	16	12	16
6.	Этот удивительный	19	14	19
0.	мир!	19	14	19
7.	Свободное время	15	12	15
	Профессионально-			
III	ориентированная	33	27	33
	сфера			
8.	Что ждать нам от	16	13	16
ο.	будущего?	10	13	10
9.	Работа. Карьера.	17	14	17
7.	Образование	1 /	14	1 /
	Итого	155	117	155

#### 3. ТЕСТОВЫЕ ЗАДАНИЯ

#### Раздел 1. Кто есть кто?

<u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильную форму глагола в предложении:

- 1. They ... a lot of friends.
  - a) have
  - б) is
  - в) are
  - г) has
- 2. He usually has lots of ideas but never ... how to get out of a difficult situation.
  - a) know
  - б) knows
  - в) is knowing
  - г) knowing
- 3. Look! It is only 8 o'clock in the morning and Jane ... on the telephone.
  - a) talks
  - б) talking
  - в) talk
  - г) is talking
- 4. People born in the year of the Rabbit ... a quiet and peaceful life.
  - a) liking
  - б) likes
  - в) are liking
  - г) like
- 5. Where is Mum?
  - She ... the kitchen-garden.
    - a) waters
    - б) is watering
    - в) water
    - г) am watering

#### Инструкция для обучающегося: Вставьте пропущенное слово

- 6. Jane is ... . She always tells the others what to do.
  - a) intelligent
  - б) sociable
  - в) bossy
  - г) charming
- 7. Andrew is ... . He can't spend a day without his friends.
  - a) sociable
  - б) bossy
  - в) strong-willed

- г) confident
- 8. Little Martin is ...; everybody smiles when they see him.
  - a) determined
  - б) charming
  - в) organized
  - г) brave
- 9. Kevin is so ..., he always feels sure about everything he does.
  - a) imaginative
  - δ) helpful
  - в) hard-working
  - г) confident
- 10. Инструкция для обучающегося: Определите по суффиксу прилагательное
  - a) imagine
  - б) imaginative
  - в) imagination
  - г) image-maker
- 11. Инструкция для обучающегося: Найдите глагол
  - a) relax
  - б) relaxing
  - в) relaxation
  - г) relaxed

#### *Инструкция для обучающегося:* Найдите «ложного друга переводчика»

- 12. a) intelligent
  - б) characteristic
  - в) popular
  - г) horoscope
- 13. a) enthusiastic
  - б) dragon
  - B) confident
  - г) energetic
- 14. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Подберите определение к поговорке *A dog's life* 
  - a) You behave in a foolish way, usually to make people laugh.
  - б) You put someone in a position where he will be attacked.
  - B) You do not believe that something will happen.
  - r) You have to work very hard, have very few pleasures and no spare time.
- 15. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Подберите определение к поговорке *To play the goat* 
  - a) You behave in a foolish way, usually to make people laugh.

- б) You put someone in a position where he will be attacked. B) You do not believe that something will happen. Γ) You have to work very hard, have very few pleasures and no spare time. 16. Инструкция для обучающегося: Выберите правильное словосочетание с глаголом to make:
  - a) decision
  - б) time
  - в) part
  - г) risks
- 17. Инструкция для обучающегося: Выберите правильное словосочетание с глаголом to take:
  - a) money
  - б) friends
  - B) decision
  - г) risks

#### Инструкция для обучающегося: Запишите Ваш вариант ответа

- 18. A person always telling the truth is ...
- 19. A person who is between 13 and 19 years old is a ...
- 20. An activity you do for pleasure when you are not working is a ...

#### Раздел 2. Город

### Инструкция для обучающегося: Вставьте артикль, если нужно

- 1. There are three hotels and two restaurants in ... town.
  - a) the
  - б) a
  - в) an
  - г) –
- 2. Vyborg is 140 km north of ... St. Petersburg.
  - a) the
  - б) а
  - в) an
  - L) -

#### Инструкция для обучающегося: Выберите правильное определение ИЗ предложенных

- 3. A place where a show is performed by people and trained animals.
  - a) a concert hall
  - б) a nightclub
  - в) an art gallery
  - г) a circus

<ul> <li>4. A place where buses and train stop, so that passengers can get off and on.</li> <li>a) a bridge</li> <li>b) a road</li> <li>b) a station</li> <li>c) a circus</li> </ul>
<u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u> : Определите правильный вариант прилагательного
<ul> <li>5. a) romantical</li> <li>δ) romanting</li> <li>B) romanful</li> <li>Γ) romantic</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>a) dangerant</li> <li>b) dangering</li> <li>c) dangerous</li> <li>dangered</li> </ul>
<u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u> : Выберите правильный вариант
<ul> <li>7 wide roads and bridges in Saint Petersburg?</li> <li>a) There is</li> <li>b) There are</li> <li>c) Are there</li> <li>d) Is there</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>8 no circus and art gallery in this old town.</li> <li>a) There is</li> <li>б) There are</li> <li>в) Are there</li> <li>г) Is there</li> <li>9. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося:</u> Выберите американский эквивалент слова lorry:</li> </ul>
a) truck б) subway в) sidewalk г) cab
10. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося:</u> Выберите американский эквивалент слова pavement:
0) tm10/z

- a) truck
- б) subway
- в) sidewalk
- г) cab

## <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильный вариант

11. Seven times six equals ...

- a) one
- б) forty-two
- в) fifty-two
- г) thirteen
- 12. Ninety minus five is ...
  - a) eighty-five
  - б) sixteen
  - в) ninety-five
  - г) forty-five

#### <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильный вариант предлога

- 13. How can I get ... the post office?
  - a) at
  - б) to
  - в) in
  - г) on
- 14. A bridge is a road or a railway line built ... something.
  - a) to
  - б) in
  - в) under
  - г) over

#### <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите неверное предложение

- 15. a) Vyborg is an old European town.
  - б) Vyborg is situated in the desert.
  - B) There are a lot of historic monuments there.
  - r) It is famous for its old castle.
- 16. a) Novosibirsk was built on two sides of the Ob River.
  - б) The city is quite young and modern.
  - в) There is no subway system in Novosibirsk.
  - r) The city is the transportation center for all of Siberia.
- 17. Инструкция для обучающегося: Расположите элементы списка в правильной последовательности
  - a) Add some salt and pepper, and mix thoroughly.
  - б) Put the mixture into a frying pan with oil.
  - B) This is how an omelette is made.
  - Γ) Sprinkle the omelette with cheese.
  - д) Put two eggs and a cup of milk into a bowl.
  - e) Fry it for 7 minutes.
  - ж) Serve with pieces of toast.

### Раздел 3. История твоего города

1. Инструкция для обучающегося: Сос	отнесите элементы двух списков
<ol> <li>traffic</li> <li>tea</li> <li>business</li> <li>coffee</li> </ol>	a) house б) centre в) jam г) shop
2. Инструкция для обучающегося: Вер	оное словосочетание с глаголом to create:
<ul> <li>a) with a new cafe</li> <li>δ) more beautiful</li> <li>B) a monument</li> <li>Γ) the walls</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>a) a millionaire</li> <li>b) a museum</li> <li>c) a monument</li> <li>d) depressed</li> </ul>	верные словосочетания с глаголом <i>to become:</i>
<u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u> : Запил	шите Ваш вариант ответа
<ul> <li>4. beautiful the most beautiful</li> <li>5 lazier - the laziest</li> <li>6. bad the worst</li> </ul>	iul
<u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u> : Выбе	рите правильный вариант
<ul> <li>7. St. Petersburg is than Moscow.</li> <li>a) small</li> <li>δ) smaller</li> <li>B) more small</li> <li>Γ) the smallest</li> </ul>	
8. I think it is building among them.	
<ul><li>a) best</li><li>δ) the better</li><li>B) good</li><li>Γ) the best</li></ul>	
9. My home isn't a castle. a) big as δ) not so big as B) so big as γ) so big	
10. The I forget, the I know.	

- a) most, least
- б) most, less
- в) more, least
- г) more, less

#### <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильный вариант глагола

- 11.... to this part of the city before?
  - a) were you
  - б) have you be
  - в) have you been
  - г) did you be
- 12. They ... to transform country roads into highways yet.
  - a) didn't finish
  - б) haven't finished
  - в) finished
  - г) hasn't finished
- 13. St. Petersburg ... in many ways recently, both for better and for worse.
  - a) changed
  - б) have change
  - в) have changed
  - г) haschanged

## <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильный вопрос к подчеркнутому словосочетанию

- 14. Dad has been painting the door for two hours.
  - a) How long has Dad been painting the door?
  - б) How long Dad has been painting the door?
  - в) How long has been Dad painting the door?
  - г) How long have Dad been painting the door?
- 15. They have transformed the face of the place.
  - a) What they transformed?
  - б) What have they transformed?
  - в) What have transformed they?
  - r) What they have transformed?

## <u>Инструкция для обучающегося:</u> Расположите части предложения в логической последовательности

- 16. a) advertisement
  - б) they have
  - в) into an enormous
  - г) turned the place
- 17. a) this year
  - б) buildings have

- в) how many
- г) been repaired
- 18. a) in the city
  - б) haven't
  - в) some things
  - г) changed at all
- 19. Инструкция для обучающегося: Выберите правильный вариант
  - a) The city has already become more a home for business.
  - б) The city already has become more a home for business.
  - B) The city has become already more a home for business.
  - Γ) Already the city has become more a home for business.
- 20. Инструкция для обучающегося: Верно ли высказывание:
- "St. Petersburg still has no buildings taller than the top of the spire of the Peter and Paul Fortress?"
  - a) True
  - б) False

#### Раздел 4. По дороге воспоминаний

- 1. Инструкция для обучающегося: Выберите глагол из предложенного списка
  - a) memorable
  - б) memorise
  - в) memory
  - г) memorizing
- 2. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Вставьте пропущенное слово в предложение You can't rely on her. She is so ...
  - a) forgetting
  - б) forgetful
  - в) forget
  - г) forgotten

Инструкция для обучающегося: Выберите правильный вариант сказуемого

- 3. I ... my homework from 6 till 8 pm yesterday.
  - a) did
  - б) doing
  - в) were doing
  - г) was doing
- 4. When our mother ... us, I ... my sister's hair.
  - a) saw, was cutting
  - б) was seeing, was cutting
  - в) was seeing, cut
  - г) saw, cut

- 5. As I ... on my new bicycle, I suddenly ... Ann. a) rode, met б) was riding, met в) was riding, was meeting г) rode, was meeting 6. Инструкция для обучающегося: Выберите правильный вариант предлога When I learned to ride a bike, I was so proud ... myself. a) of б) about B) over г) with 7. Инструкция для обучающегося: Выберите правильное словосочетание с глаголом to take: a) knowledge б) fun в) a break г) self-confidence 8. Инструкция для обучающегося: Выберите неверное словосочетание с глаголом to have: a) knowledge б) an idea в) a break г) a trip
  - 9. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильное словосочетание с глаголом *to develop*:
    - a) a trip
    - б) self-confidence
    - в) abreak
    - г) fun

<u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильный вариант модального глагола или его эквивалента

- 10. My son ... talk when he was only 18 months old.
  - a) was able
  - б) couldn't
  - B) could
  - г) were able
- 11. What are you doing at the weekend?
  - I hope I'll ...to go to the countryside.
    - a) be able
    - б) can

- в) couldn't
- г) was able

#### <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильный вариант

- 12. It helps you to keep warm when you are at home.
  - a) a washing machine
  - б) gas
  - в) satellite TV
  - г) central heating
- 13. People use it to cook food.
  - a) a dishwasher
  - δ) the Internet
  - B) gas
  - г) bath/ shower
- 14. Инструкция для обучающегося: Выберите несколько правильных вариантов из предложенных

*In the 1500s:* 

- a) People washed in May and June.
- б) Brides carried a bouquet of flowers to hide the body odour.
- B) Children always had cleaner water for washing than their parents.
- r) They used the same water for the whole family.
- д) People rarely washed the pot for cooking.
- e) Sometimes people ate the food which was not very fresh.
- 15. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Подберите английский эквивалент русской поговорки «Дождь льет как из ведра»
  - a) Let bygones be bygones.
  - б) It's raining cats and dogs.
  - в) Don't throw the baby out with the bath water.
  - r) Pease porridge hot, pease porridge cold, pease porridge in the pot nine days old.

#### Раздел 5. Правдивая история

#### 1. Инструкция для обучающегося: Соотнесите элементы двух списков

1. to lie

a) dull grey

2. to get

б) a tent with somebody

3. to turn

в) to someone

4. to share

г) in a tent

5. to smash

д) lost

6. to set up

e) into something

7. to talk

ж) tents

### Инструкция для обучающегося: Запишите Ваш вариант ответа

- 2. A warm bag you sleep in especially when camping is a ...
- 3. A shelter made of clothes is a ...

- 4. A bag used when you are travelling is a ...
- 5. A place with tents where people go for a holiday is a ...
- 6. Инструкция для обучающегося: Соотнесите элементы двух списков
- 1. The sun had appeared in the sky
- 2. When my father got home after work,
- a) before I passed the exam.
- δ) since the beginning of the second term.
- 3. The lesson had already lasted for 15 minutes
- в) before they left the campsite.
- 4. I had been learning English at school for two years
- r) before we became real friends.
- for two years

  5. I had known her for five years
- д) when I entered the classroom.
- 6. My teacher said that I had missed two classes
- e) I had already gone to bed.

<u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильный вариант обстоятельства времени

- 7. ... I put on my walking shoes, I heard the doorbell: my friend had come to pick me up.
  - a) then
  - б) when
  - B) soon
  - г) beforehand
- 8. If I had known ... what the trip would be like, I would have never taken it.
  - a) as soon as
  - б) at that time
  - в) beforehand
  - г) then
- 9. It was getting colder and colder. And ... I felt freezing wind on my face.
  - a) soon
  - б) as soon as
  - в) beforehand
  - г) when

<u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите слово, не относящееся к данному списку

- 10. a) drizzle
  - б) downpour
  - в) blizzard
  - г) grumpy
- 11. a) mountain
  - б) backpack
  - в) tent

г) compass

#### Инструкция для обучающегося: Выберите правильный вариант

- 12. By the time the hiking trip ..., Donna and Lori ... good friends.
  - a) finished, had made
  - б) had finished, had made
  - в) finished, made
  - г) had finished, made
- 13. Lori's sleeping bag ... through, and the girls ... to share Donna's.
  - a) soaked, decided
  - б) had soaked, had decided
  - в) had soaked, decided
  - г) soaked, had decided

#### <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Заполните пропуски подходящим по смыслу словом

- 15. The train leaves at 8 am sharp, so I ... you to be at the station on time.
  - a) exhaust
  - б) expect
  - в) miserable
  - г) share
- 16. He is cold and hungry no wonder he is feeling so ...
  - a) exhaust
  - б) expect
  - в) miserable
  - г) share
- 17. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Подберите правильное окончание истории A professor who was famous for his creative exam questions handed out the final exam to his students. The exam had only one question, "What is courage?"
  - a) The professor angrily asked him what his name was and the young man pointed at his feet and said, "You tell me, Prof."
  - б) The only "A" given on that particular exam was to a quiet young man who wrote simply: "This is."
  - B) It read: "I've read this paper four times now ... and I like it better each time!"
  - r) The professor replied that he didn't, and the student stuck his exam in the middle of the stack and said, "Good."

#### Раздел 6. Этот удивительный мир!

- 1. Инструкция для обучающегося: Соотнесите элементы двух списков
  - 1. I started listening to political news
  - 2. The President hasn't been on leave
  - 3. I won my first championship
  - 4. Alex lived in Moscow
  - 5. I've known Peter

- a) since the beginning of the year.
- б) when he was a child.
- в) when I was 13.
- $\Gamma$ ) at the age of 18.
- д) since we were schoolchildren.

#### <u>Инструкция для обучающегося:</u> Выберите пропущенную реплику

- 2. Have you heard the news? Our school is moving to a comfortable new building with a swimming pool!
  - ...! I can't believe it!
    - a) Oh, dear!
    - б) How interesting!
    - в) Congratulations!
    - г) Really!
    - д) You are kidding!
- 3. I heard we'll have longer holidays this year.
  - ...! It's too good to be true.
    - a) Oh, dear!
    - б) How interesting!
    - в) Congratulations!
    - г) Really!
    - д) You are kidding!
- 4. I've got "five" in my exam at arts school!
  - ...! I was sure you could do it!
    - a) Oh, dear!
    - б) How interesting!
    - в) Congratulations!
    - г) Really!
    - д) You are kidding!

#### Инструкция для обучающегося: Соотнесите статью с разделом газеты

- 5. As your own planet, Jupiter, meets Venus, it closes one door to your past and opens another on a rosy future.
  - a) home news
  - б) foreign news
  - в) advertisement
  - г) horoscope
  - д) letters/ Agony Aunt section
- 6. These titles are among the best-selling books in the world. You'd read them if you had time. But you don't? Fortunately, there is an effective solution. Audio books.
  - a) home news
  - б) foreign news
  - в) advertisement
  - г) horoscope
  - д) letters/ Agony Aunt section
- 7. I was happy until I started at secondary school, but for the past two years I've been bullied by two girls who spread rumours about me. I've told my mum but she doesn't know what to do. Please, help me.

- a) home news
- б) foreign news
- в) advertisement
- г) horoscope
- д) letters/ Agony Aunt section
- 8. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите обстоятельство времени, употребляющееся с Present Perfect Tense
  - a) ever
  - б) yesterday
  - в) last month
  - г) when
- 9. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите обстоятельство времени, употребляющееся с Past Indefinite Tense
  - a) already
  - б) just
  - в) a year ago
  - г) this week

#### <u>Инструкция для обучающегося:</u> Выберите правильный вариант

- 10. My mother is always ... when I don't come home in time.
  - a) worried
  - б) bored
  - в) excited
  - г) confused
- 11. She watches horror films on TV every week and now she is ... to go out at night.
  - a) interested
  - б) upset
  - в) frightened
  - г) shocked
- 12. The news was so ... that we immediately told everybody about it.
  - a) bored
  - б) boring
  - в) excited
  - г) exciting

#### <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильный вариант глагола

- 13. *I* ... *James since we were students*.
  - a) have known
  - б) knew
  - в) know
  - г) has known
- 14. ... you ... the report?

- No, I'm planning to do it tomorrow.
- a) have ... already finish
- б) have already ... finished
- в) have already ... finish
- г) have ... already finished
- 15. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильный порядок слов в предложении: I can't find the TV schedule. Where ... (put) it?
  - a) Where I have put it?
  - б) Where did I put it?
  - в) Where I put it?
  - г) Where have I put it?

<u>Инструкция для обучающегося:</u> Расположите части предложения в логической последовательности

- 16. a) for the first time
  - б) when have
  - в) you seen this
  - г) film
- 17. a) set a new
  - б) the Guinness Book of Records
  - в) world record for
  - r) a group of friends have
- 18. a) has left his
  - б) medals in Athens
  - в) an absent-minded Olympic Champion
  - г) two gold
- 19. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Расположите предложения в правильной последовательности
  - a) He says he got an idea of changing his name at work.
  - б) The 39-year-old's new identity is already on his driving license.
  - в) An Illinois man has changed his name from Raymond Allen Gray to Bubba Bubba.
  - г) He says he has been known as "Bubba" Gray for a long time.
  - д) A female colleague called him Bubba, Bubba, Bubba and another colleague believed that was his real name.

#### Раздел 7. Свободное время

- 1. *Инструкция для обучающегося:* Найдите слова и выражения, сходные по значению
- 1. to take place

a) to say or write about something you don't like

2. to stay

б) to live

- 3. to book accommodation B) to reserve a room or a place to stay
- 4. to take an overnight train  $\Gamma$ ) to travel at night and arrive in the morning
- 5. to complain about something д) to happen
- 2. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося:</u> Выберите из списка слово, противоположное по значению слову *to arrive:* 
  - a) to get back
  - б) to return
  - в) to cancel
  - г) to leave
- 3. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося:</u> Выберите из списка слово, противоположное по значению слову *to book:* 
  - a) to fly to
  - б) to get to
  - в) to cancel
  - г) to get back
- 4. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося:</u> Выберите из списка слово, противоположное по значению слову *to return:* 
  - a) to leave
  - б) to arrive
  - в) to get back
  - г) to go to
- 5. Инструкция для обучающегося: Соотнесите элементы двух списков
- 1. Sarah loves animals.
- 2. I think I am really fat.
- 3. Dan has a bad cold.
- 4. I am really hungry.
- 5. My mother doesn't like it when I'm listening to this music.
- a) He is going to stay in bed.
- б) I'm going to order meat and vegetables.
- в) She is going to be very angry.
- г) I am not going to eat dessert.
- д) She is going to the Zoo.

Инструкция для обучающегося: Выберите правильный вариант

- 6. ... anything to eat at the party tomorrow?
  - a) there will be
  - б) won't there be
  - в) will there be
  - г) there won't be
- 7. ... arrive at the hotel?
  - a) when will they
  - б) when they will
  - в) where will they
  - г) where they will
- 8. ... to book the accommodation and the flight to New York?

- a) where are you going
- б) what are you going
- в) when are you going
- г) what you are going

#### <u>Инструкция для обучающегося:</u> Выберите правильный вариант

- 9. This attraction shows the visitors the history of chocolate.
  - a) Cadbury World Tour
  - б) Longleat
  - в) Dali Universe
  - г) Royal Opera at Covent Garden
- 10. This is one of the most beautiful places in Britain with its Stately Home, Safari Park, and Pet's Corner.
  - a) Cadbury World Tour
  - б) Longleat
  - в) Dali Universe
  - г) Royal Opera at Covent Garden
- 11. This is a London attraction dedicated to the great genius of Twentieth Century Art.
  - a) Cadbury World Tour
  - б) Longleat
  - в) Dali Universe
  - г) Royal Opera at Covent Garden

#### <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильный вариант предлога

- 12. We are going to spend four days in Moscow and fly ... home on October 27.
  - a) back
  - б) to
  - B) in
  - г) at
- 13. She likes travelling ... plane.
  - a) on
  - б) by
  - B) in
  - г) at

#### <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильный вариант

- 14. ... is an airport in Britain; one of the biggest airports in the world.
  - a) Breadfield
  - б) Massachusetts
  - в) Heathrow
  - г) Hamburg
- 15. A resort is ...
  - a) conditions in which you live and work

- б) a group of people singing together
- в) a place where a lot of people go on holiday
- г) something you ask for

#### Раздел 8. Что ждать нам от будущего?

#### 1. Инструкция для обучающегося: Соотнесите элементы двух списков

mild/ tropical
 bright/ warm
 heavy/ patchy
 severe/ electrical
 strong/ light
 sunny/ clear

a) rain б) wind

в) climateг) spells

д) storm

e) sunshine

#### <u>Инструкция для обучающегося:</u> Запишите Ваш вариант ответа

- 2. A violent storm -
- 3. A huge wave -
- 4. A sudden shaking of the earth's surface -

#### <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильный вариант

- 5. Its winds can reach 300 meters per hour.
  - a) tornado
  - б) snowstorm
  - в) volcano eruption
  - г) thunderstorm
- 6. It can be dangerous because of lightning.
  - a) tornado
  - б) snowstorm
  - в) volcano eruption
  - г) thunderstorm
- 7. It happens mostly in winter.
  - a) tornado
  - б) snowstorm
  - в) volcano eruption
  - г) thunderstorm
- 8. *Инструкция для обучающегося:* Выберите неправильный вариант из предложенных
  - a) Flooding is the most common of all natural disasters.
  - б) Every place on earth is at equal risk of a tornado.
  - B) Lightning kills more people each year than tornado.
  - r) Nearly 1,800 thunderstorms are happening at any moment around the

<u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u> : Выберите правильный вариант модального глагола
9. – Where is David?
- He be at school. It's 10 o'clock now and classes begin at 8.
a) must
б) тау
в) might
г) could

- 10. I am absolutely sure! They ... arrive tomorrow, because I got a telegram.
  - a) can't
  - б) might
  - в) must
  - г) could

#### <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильный вариант

- 11. Clouds play a powerful ... in warming and cooling our planet.
  - a) part
  - б) play
  - в) role
  - г) effect
- 12. Scientists are now studying clouds in an attempt to forecast ... climatic changes.
  - a) so
  - б) such
  - в) a
  - $\Gamma$ ) this
- 13. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите слово, противоположное по смыслу глаголу *to improve*:
  - a) fall
  - б) rise
  - в) decline
  - г) get better
- 14. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите слово, противоположное по смыслу глаголу *to rise*:
  - a) fall
  - б) go up
  - в) increase
  - г) get worse

Инструкция для обучающегося: Выберите правильный вариант глагола

- 15. It often ... here.
  - a) snow
  - б) is snowing

- B) snows
- г) snowing
- 16. Look! It ... heavily.
  - a) is raining
  - б) rains
  - в) rain
  - г) raining

#### Раздел 9. Работа. Карьера. Образование

#### <u>Инструкция для обучающегося:</u> Выберите правильный вариант профессии

- 1. ... buys air time for television and radio commercials, space for ads in magazines and newspapers.
  - a) a window dresser
  - б) a social worker
  - в) a media buyer
  - г) a PR representative
- 2. ... develops and promotes new food products, plans menus, give patients advice about healthy eating.
  - a) a dietician
  - б) a media buyer
  - в) a PR representative
  - г) a social worker
- 3. ... writes news releases, brochures, speeches, newsletters; plans press conferences and special events.
  - a) a dietician
  - б) a media buyer
  - в) a PR representative
  - г) a window dresser
- 4. *Инструкция для обучающегося*: Выберите определение слову *a resume* 
  - a) a document giving proof of your educational qualifications
  - б) something you have worked hard for and done well
  - в) a paper describing your education, work experience etc
  - r) work you have done before
- 5. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите определение слову achievement
  - a) a document giving proof of your educational qualifications
  - б) something you have worked hard for and done well
  - в) a paper describing your education, work experience etc
  - г) work you have done before
- 6. Инструкция для обучающегося: Выберите определение слову a certificate
  - a) a document giving proof of your educational qualifications
  - б) something you have worked hard for and done well

- в) a paper describing your education, work experience etc
- r) work you have done before
- 7. <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Расположите предложения в правильной последовательности
  - a) She accepted the job.
  - б) She saw the advertisement.
  - в) They offered her a job.
  - r) They gave her an interview.
  - д) She sent her CV.

## <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Дополните предложения подходящими по смыслу словами

- 8. He is very good at organizing and he is a talented communicator. So this is not a problem for him ...
  - a) to quit a job.
  - б) to change his mind.
  - в) to judge by skills.
  - г) to manage a staff of 20 people.
- 9. It's a very demanding work. I'm always ...
  - a) life-long learning.
  - б) under pressure.
  - в) judge by experience.
  - г) have another try.
- 10. I can't work there any more, I'm completely exhausted. I'm going ...
  - a) to manage a staff of 20 people.
  - б) to have another try.
  - в) to be under pressure.
  - г) to quit a job.

## Инструкция для обучающегося: Запишите Ваш вариант ответа

- 11. A person who designs is a ...
- 12. A person who cooks dishes is a ...
- 13. A person working in a library is a ...

## <u>Инструкция для обучающегося</u>: Выберите правильные варианты вопросов к предложению

- 14. I'm a cook. I work in a popular restaurant.
  - a) What are you?
  - б) Who are you?
  - в) What is your job?
  - r) What do you do for a living?
- 15. I design window displays for department stores and boutiques.
  - a) What is your salary?

- б) What do you do in your job?
- в) What does your job involve?
- r) What are your working hours?

#### Инструкция для обучающегося: Выберите правильный вариант

- 16. As soon as Bob ... another job, he ...
  - a) find, quit
  - б) finds, will quit
  - в) will find, will quit
  - г) will find, quit
- 17. *I* ... *a job when I* ... *next June*.
  - a) will get, graduate
  - б) get, graduate
  - в) get, will graduate
  - г) will get, will graduate

## 4. ВАРИАНТЫ ОТВЕТОВ НА ТЕСТОВЫЕ ЗАДАНИЯ

№ тестового задания	Варианты ответа
Раздел 1. Кп	по есть кто?
1	a
2	б
3	Γ
4	Γ
5	б
6	В
7	a
8	б
9	Γ
10	б
11	a
12	a
13	В
14	Γ
15	a
16	a
17	Γ
18	honest
19	teenager
20	hobby
Раздел	2. Город
1	a
2	Γ
3	Γ
4	В
5	Γ
6	В
7	В
8	a
9	a
10	В
11	б
12	a
13	б
14	Γ
15	б
16	В
17	в, д, а, б, е, г, ж
Раздел 3. История твоего города	
1 В, 2а, 3б, 4г	

2	В	
3	б, в, г	
4	more beautiful	
5	lazy	
6	worse	
7	б	
8	Γ	
9	В	
10	Γ	
11	В	
12	б	
13	Γ	
14	a	
15	б	
16	б, г, в, а	
17	в, б, г, а	
18	в, б, г, а	
19	a	
20	a	
Раздел 4. По дороге воспоминаний		
1	б	
2	б	
3	Γ	
4	a	
5	б	
6	a	
7	В	
8	Γ	
9	б	
10	В	
11	a	
12	Γ	
13	В	
14	б, г, д, е	
15	б	
Раздел 5. Правдивая история		
1	1г, 2д, 3а, 4б, 5е, 6ж, 7в	
2	sleeping bag	
3	tent	
4		
5	backpack	
3	backpack camp	
6		
	camp	

9	a
10	Γ
11	a
12	Γ
13	В
14	б
15	В
16	б
Раздел 6. Этот у	дивительный мир!
1	1г, 2а, 3в, 4б, 5д
2	Γ
3	Д
4	В
5	Γ
6	В
7	Д
8	a
9	В
10	a
11	В
12	Γ
13	a
14	Γ
15	Γ
16	б, в, г, а
17	г, а, в, б
18	в, а, г, б
19	в, а, д, б, г
Раздел 7. Све	ободное время
1	1д, 2б, 3в, 4г, 5а
2	Γ
3	В
4	Γ
5	1д, 2г, 3а, 4б, 5в
6	В
7	a
8	В
9	a
10	б
11	В
12	a
13	б
14	В
15	В

Раздел 8. Что нам ждать от будущего?		
1	1в, 2е, 3а, 4д, 5б, 6г	
2	hurricane	
3	tsunami	
4	earthquake	
5	a	
6	Γ	
7	б	
8	б	
9	a	
10	В	
11	a	
12	б	
13	В	
14	a	
15	В	
16	a	
Раздел 9. Работа. К	Сарьера. Образование	
1	В	
2	a	
3	В	
4	В	
5	б	
6	a	
7	б, д, г, в, а	
8	Γ	
9	б	
10	Γ	
11	designer	
12	cook	
13	librarian	
14	а, в, г	
15	б, в	
16	б	
17	a	

### 5. КРИТЕРИИ ОЦЕНКИ

### Дифференцированная шкала оценки тестовых заданий (в %)

Оценка	5	4	3
Жесткая	100	99-85	84-65
Средняя	100-95	94-80	79-65
Мягкая	100-85	84-70	69-55

# Дифференцированная шкала оценки тестовых заданий (количество правильных ответов)

Количество вопросов	5	10	15	20		
Жесткая шкала оценок						
5 – 100%	5	10	15	20		
4 – 99-85 %	4	9	13-14	17-19		
3 - 84-65 %	3	7-8	10-12	13-16		
Средняя шкала оценок						
5 – 100-95 %	5	10	14-15	19-20		
4 – 94-80 %	4	8-9	12-13	16-18		
3 - 79-65 %	3	7-6	10-11	13-15		
Мягкая шкала оценок						
5 – 100-85%	4-5	9-10	13-15	17-20		
4 – 84-70 %	4	7-9	11-12	15-16		
3 – 69-55 %	3	6-7	8-10	11-14		

#### ПЕРЕЧЕНЬ РЕКОМЕНДУЕМЫХ УЧЕБНЫХ ИЗДАНИЙ, ДОПОЛНИТЕЛЬНОЙ ЛИТЕРАТУРЫ:

#### Основные источники:

- 1. Тимофеев В.Г. и др. Up and Up 10: Student's Book: учебник английского языка для 10 класса: среднее (полное) общее образование (базовый уровень) [Текст]: учебник/ В.Г. Тимофеев и др. М.: Издательский центр «Академия», 2012. 144 с.
- 2. Тимофеев В.Г. и др. Up and Up 10: Workbook: рабочая тетрадь к учебнику английского языка для 10 класса: среднее (полное) общее образование (базовый уровень) [Текст]: рабочая тетрадь/ В.Г. Тимофеев и др. М.: Издательский центр «Академия», 2012. 56 с.: ил.

#### Дополнительные источники:

- 1. Безкоровайная, Г.Т. и др. Planet of English [Текст]: учебник английского языка для учреждений НПО и СПО/ Г.Т. Безкоровайная и др. М.: Издательский центр «Академия», 2013. 256 с.
- 2. Мюллер, В.К. Новый англо-русский, русско-английский словарь [Текст]: / Мюллер, В.К. М.: «Аделант», 2012. 800 с.
- 3. Шалаева, Г.П. Вся грамматика английского языка в таблицах. [Текст]: учебное пособие / Г.П. Шалаева М.: Филологическое общество «Слово», 2005.—63 с.